
 
DESERT WATER AGENCY     BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 20, 2015                                                                REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
                                                          

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 GENE AUTRY TRAIL SOUTH – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 
About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – October 6, 2015  EWING                                                              

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   LUKER 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS – Executive – October 13, 2015         EWING  
 
5. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT – September, 2015      STUART 

 
6. PUBLIC INPUT 

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of 
the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the 
agenda. 
 

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION - None 
 

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. Agency Pipeline Presentation (PowerPoint Presentation)  JOHNSON 
B. September Water Use Reduction Figures  LUKER 
C. Review of Ordinance No. 63  LUKER 

   
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make 
reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8583 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/06/15 

 

                               2                                    
   MINUTES   

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
October 6, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Richard Oberhaus, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary to the Board ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
       

Attendance 

17269.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Vice President Cioffi in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17270.  President Ewing called for approval of the September 15, 
2015 Regular and September 23, 2015 Special Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Vice President Cioffi moved for approval. After a second by 
Secretary-Treasurer Stuart, the minutes were approved as written. Director 
Oygar abstained on the September 23 minutes due to her absence at that 
meeting. 
 
17271.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported on September 22 at approximately 9:00 
p.m., stand-by responded to a call at 300 S. Palm Canyon Dr. (Palm Springs 
Art Museum). The fire service had a considerable blow out which ended up 
flooding the lower level. The water ran for 30-45 minutes. Repairs have 
been made and the fire service is back in service. He noted that Agency 
staff has sent a claim for damages form, per the Museum’s request. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of the 
09/15/15 Regular & 
09/23/15 Special Board 
Mtg. Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
Palm Springs Art 
Museum Flooding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8584 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/06/15 

 
  Mr. Luker then reported on September 23 at approximately 
11:00 a.m., staff responded to a stolen two-inch backflow at 950 Williams 
Rd. The customer made a police report and the backflow was replaced and 
is now back in service. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated on September 24 at 7:30 a.m., staff noticed a 
large amount of trash outside the west side door of the Agency. There was 
an empty FedEx box along with empty brown bags and medical marijuana 
boxes. Palm Springs Police responded and took an incident report; they 
determined it to be someone dumpster diving. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Luker stated on September 25 at 
approximately 2:30 p.m., the Assistant Construction Superintendent 
responded to a stolen fire hydrant on the South side of Sunny Dunes Rd., 
East of San Luis Rey. Thieves must have turned the valve off; there was no 
sign of any water loss. A police report was made and the hydrant is back in 
service. 
 
  Mr. Luker noted on September 28 while crews were taking 
the bac-t on hydrant #2434; they noticed the hydrant across the street was 
also missing (Sunny Dunes Rd., East of San Luis Rey).  
 
  Noting another stolen hydrant, Mr. Luker stated on September 
29 after staff was flushing hydrant #1994, they found another hydrant that 
was stolen on Sunny Dunes Rd., East of Gene Autry Trail. 
 
  Mr. Luker then reported on September 30, DWA, CVWD and 
MWD staff visited Lake Perris to tour the dam remediation work currently 
in progress. Construction to strengthen the dam foundation began in 2014 
and is expected to continue for three years. The design concept is to remove 
and replace loose soils, improve the deeper foundation soils by Cement 
Deep Soiling Mix (CDSM) and construct a stability berm on the 
downstream side of the dam and include drainage features. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated on October 1 at approximately 3:00 a.m. 
stand-by was notified of a fire hydrant alarm on hydrant #2431. This 
hydrant is located on the South side of the intersection of Indian Springs 
Rd. and Rio Blanco Rd. When staff arrived, water was spraying out of the 
hydrant’s flange. Thieves attempted to unbolt the hydrant. Staff noticed that 
the valve in the street was nearly off; they replaced the bolts and gasket and 
turned the hydrant back on. A police report was made. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker reported on October 3 at 
approximately 11:45 a.m., staff responded to an illegal connection on a 
backflow device at 5400 N. Indian Cyn Dr. It was discovered that True 
South Renewable was using the connection to fill a tank in order to clean 
solar panels. Staff disassembled the illegal connection, put the backflow 
back together and filled out an unauthorized direct connection form. 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Stolen Backflow 
 
 
 
Agency Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stolen Fire Hydrant 
#2434 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stolen Fire Hydrant 
#1994 
 
 
 
 
 
Stolen Fire Hydrant 
#2439 
 
 
 
Lake Perris Dam 
Remediation Work 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant  #2431 
Alarm  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Unauthorized Water Use 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8585 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/06/15 

 
  In response to Director Oberhaus, Mr. Luker stated the 
Agency has an “Unauthorized Water Use” charge of $1,042. This charge is 
a discretionary charge approved by the General Manager. 
 
17272.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Ewing closed the public comment period.  
 
17273.  President Ewing asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the September 16, 2015 Board of Directors of the State Water 
Project Contractors Authority (SWPCA) and September 17, 2015 Board of 
Directors of the State Water Contracts, Inc. meetings. 
 
  Mr. Riddell reported on the following items: 1) SWPCA 
Board Meeting, 2) Energy Report, and 3) General Manager’s Report. 
 
17274.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
present the Alternative Conservation Plans and Examples. 
   
  Mr. Luker stated that the Agency has approved and is 
currently reviewing a number of alternative conservation plans received by 
customers who are ordinarily confined to Ordinance No. 63 restrictions. 
The plans allow customers to propose adjusted schedules for irrigation that 
still achieve a 36% reduction compared to 2013 use. Plans vary in approach 
and duration. All plans are reviewed by staff and approved by the General 
Manager. He noted that five plans have been approved so far, 1) O’Donnell 
Golf Club, 2) Las Fuentes Inn and Gardens, 3) Canyon View Estates Golf 
Course, 4) San Jacinto Village, and 5) Firebird Estates. 
 
  Director Oberhaus requested that the Board bring back 
Ordinance No. 63 for a future meeting for review and revision (specifically 
Section 6 “Exceptions”. His opinion is that this section does not grant the 
General Manager authority as outlined in Resolution No. 1108, and it 
should. He then requested delaying review of existing plans until the 
ordinance is reviewed. 
 
  President Ewing stated although he feels the authority is in 
Ordinance No. 63, he suggested further review by the Board. He expressed 
opposition in delaying plan reviews. 
 
  Vice President Cioffi expressed appreciation to staff and his 
opposition to delaying plan reviews. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart noted the past letter received from 
The O’Donnell Golf Club requesting the Agency’s help in conservation 
efforts. 
 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Unauthorized Water Use  
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
State Water Project 
Contractors Authority 
and Board of Directors 
of the State Water 
Contractors, Inc. 
Meetings 
 
 
 
 
 
Alternative Conservation 
Plans & Examples 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8586 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/06/15 

 
  President Ewing requested that an approval form letter with 
follow up requirements be sent rather than an email. 
 
17275.  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart noted his attendance at the 
September 18 event at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency. He stated it was 
well attended with excellent speakers and presentations. He noted 
presentations from the City Manager of Coachella, CVWD and the City of 
Palm Springs. 
 
  President Ewing also noted his attendance stating it was a sold 
out event with positive feedback. 
 
17276.  President Ewing noted his attendance at the September 24 
ACWA Board Budget Workshop and September 25 ACWA Board Meeting 
in Sacramento. He stated the following key items were discussed: 1) The 
Nomination Committee’s recommendation for President is Kathy Tiegs and 
for Vice President is Brett Hastings, 2) ACWA is closely following the 
potential Public Goods Charge, 3) ACWA is working with the LOCC, 
CSAC and CWF on potential amendments to Article X of the California 
Constitution (Prop. 218 Update), 4) SWRCB is looking at permanent 
conservation regulations that would extend beyond its current regulations 
(expiring in Feb. 2016). 
 
17277.  President Ewing noted that Board packets include media and 
public information reports for September 2015. 
 
17278.  Vice President Cioffi asked staff if the Agency has a Drought 
Action Plan. 
 
  Public Information Officer Hudgens responded that the 
Agency does not have one; it does have a Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan. 
 
  Director Oberhaus commented that a concerned citizen has 
notified him about The Parker Hotel and its green grass, along with one of 
the surrounding auto dealerships. He then asked about the Agency’s policy 
on political signs on its property. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated the Agency’s policy is to pick up signs on its 
property and contact the candidate for them to pick up. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion Items 
(Cont.) 
Alternative Conservation 
Plans & Examples 
 
Directors Report on 
ACWA Region 9 Event 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director’s Report on 
ACWA Board Budget 
Workshop & Board 
Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Information – 
September 2015 
 
 
Directors’ 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8587 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/06/15 

 
17279.  Agency Counsel Riddell stated that Closed Session 
discussions would not be needed due to there being no current updates. 
 
17280.  In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 9:22 a.m. 
    

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
Not Held 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

1 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

OCTOBER 20, 2015 
 
 

 

On October 5 at 7:30 p.m. stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant at 2465 East Palm Canyon 
Drive. Staff was able to reinstall the fire hydrant and put it back into service. A police report was 
made. The water loss was a 6-inch fully open for approximately 25 minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 

On October 7 at approximately 11:30 a.m., construction responded to a hit air vac by a contractor 
working at the Fashion Plaza (Palm Canyon Drive, South of Andreas Rd.). Staff made the 
necessary repairs, put the air vac back in service and filled out a damage report. The water ran 
from a fully open 2-inch riser for about 20 minutes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

    
 
 

On October 10 at approximately 7:30 p.m., stand by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Perez Rd., 
east of Palm Canyon Drive. Staff replaced and put the hydrant back in service. The water loss 
was from a 6-inch fully open riser, which ran for approximately 30 minutes. A police report was 
made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 

On October 12 at approximately 5:00 a.m., the Construction Superintendent received a call from 
our Information Systems department about a hydrant that had been stolen (located on the south 
east corner of Indian Springs Road and Rio Blanco). Palm Springs Police Department was 
dispatched and arrested the 2 suspects in possession of stolen brass hydrant materials. The 
police returned eight 2 1/2-inch brass caps, five 4-inch brass caps, and two brass commercial 
hydrants. After leaving the first location, Construction Superintendent found the second hydrant 
location on Sarah Street. There was one complete hydrant missing and one that was half missing. 
All three hydrants were replaced and put back into service. The valves were off in the street and 
there was no water loss. There were 2 police reports made. One with PSPD for the hydrant on 
Indian Springs Road and one for Sarah Street with CCPD. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 

 



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
 

 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
 
The Indio Sub-basin (Whitewater River Sub-basin) and the Mission Creek Sub-basin have both 
been classified by the Department of Water Resources as medium priority groundwater basins.  
Because they are medium priority basins they are required to be managed by a Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency(s) (GSA’s) or Local Agency’s having the powers to comply with SGMA.  
Desert Water Agency is the only Agency overlying the Sub-basins that already has the power to 
comply with SGMA in its formation language. 
 
The basins must be covered in their entirety by a GSA (s).  DWA Staff have had several 
preliminary meetings with the Coachella Valley Water Agency (CVWD), Coachella Water 
Authority (CWA) and Indio Water Authority (IWA) to discuss how the Sub-basins will be covered.  
The IWA and CWA have decided to form GSA’s within their own statutory boundaries.  Even 
though CVWD overlies CWA and IWA, CVWD has elected to form their GSA excluding the 
boundaries of IWA and CWA to facilitate the formation of their GSA’s.  Together with DWA 
covering its statutory boundaries these four agencies will effectively cover both Sub-basins. 
 
A small portion of the Indio Sub-basin is located in Imperial County and San Diego County.  
CVWD boundaries include these areas. Imperial County has filed a notice of intent to be the GSA 
over all the Sub-basins located within its boundaries including the area overlying the Indio Sub-
basin.  CVWD wishes to be the GSA over the portions of the Indio Sub-basin within Imperial and 
San Diego Counties.  CVWD must file a notice of intent to be a GSA over these areas and all 
others it covers within 90 days of the date the Imperial County filed its notice of intent in order to 
block Imperial County. Ultimately Imperial County and CVWD will have to come to an agreement 
over how this area will be managed.  CVWD has scheduled a hearing to become a GSA for its 
board meeting on October 13, 2015.  CVWD intends to file its notice of intent shortly afterward.  
IWA and CWA are expected to follow with their notices in the near future. 
 
DWA has the option to remain a Local Agency with the powers to comply with SGMA or become 
a GSA in which case we would retain our original powers regarding groundwater management but 
also have the authorities granted to GSA’s.  In either case the Agency must file a notice of intent.  
If it is decided to become a GSA we will need to adopt a resolution and hold a public hearing 
forming a new agency, create a GIS map of our boundaries, if necessary adopt new bylaws and 
ordinances (not necessary) and provide a list of interested parties and an explanation of how their 
interests will be considered (integrated water management planning and updates, preparation of 
monitoring and measurement reports, preparation of water management plan and updates).  Staff 
is evaluating the alternatives and will have a recommendation soon. 
 

 



4 
Minutes 

Executive Committee Meeting 
October 13, 2015 

 
 

Directors Present: Craig Ewing, Jim Cioffi      
Staff Present: Dave Luker, Mark Krause, Martin Krieger  
    
 
1. Discussion Items 

 

A. Review Agenda for October 20, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the October 20, 2015 Regular Board meeting was 
reviewed. 
 

B. Review Ordinance No. 63 
 The Committee reviewed Ordinance No. 63 and requested further 

discussion at the October 20, 2015 Regular Board meeting. 
 
C. Expense Reports 
 The September expense reports were reviewed. 

 
    

 2. Other – None. 
 
  
   
            
 3. Adjourn 

 



























8-B 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
OCTOBER 20, 2015 

 
 

RE: SEPTEMBER 2015 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 

Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 24 percent reduction in total water 
production during September 2015 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline 
year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. This September was an average of 2.4 degrees 
warmer than September of 2013 – one of many factors that the State Water Board does 
not take into consideration.  

To comply with Governor Brown’s April 1, 2015 Executive Order to reduce statewide 
water use by 25 percent, the State Water Board imposed mandatory restrictions and 
assigned different mandatory conservation goals to each urban area based on per 
capita water use. The adopted regulations require DWA to achieve a mandatory 36 
percent reduction. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for September 2015.  

Water Production for September 2015 2,718.4 AF 

Water Production for September 2013 3,570.3 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

727.9 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

67.3% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 120,573 

Estimated R-GPCD  164.57 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

115 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many contacts (written or verbal) were made with customers 
for actual or alleged water waste or for a violation of water 
conservation rules? 

91 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

63 

How many fines were issued for water waste or for a violation of 
conservation rules? 

0 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data 
on a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however, that data does not accurately reflect water use 
in DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per 
Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population. DWA 
would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the month 
of September was 183,451 acre feet. 

 



Memos/Board/2015 

8-C 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
OCTOBER 20, 2015 

 
 
RE: REVIEW OF ORDINANCE NO. 63 “ESTABLISHING A WATER 

CONSERVATION PLAN AND RESTRICTING THE USE OF WATER 
DURING THREATENED OR EXISTING WATER SHORTAGE 
CONDITIONS” 

 
 
At the October 6, 2015 Board meeting, Director Oberhaus requested further 
review of Ordinance No. 63. 
 
During the October 13, 2015 Executive Committee meeting, Ordinance No. 63 
and Resolution No. 1108 were reviewed. It was requested that Ordinance No. 63 
be further reviewed by the full Board. 
 
 
 









7-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 16, 2015 

 
RE: A PUBLIC HEARING FOR ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 63 

ESTABLISHING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN AND 
RESTRICTING THE USE OF WATER DURING THREATENED OR 
EXISTING WATER SHORTAGE CONDITIONS 

 
In response to California’s statewide drought, Governor Jerry Brown declared a 
statewide drought emergency on January 17, 2014.  California’s dry conditions have 
continued to persist. On July 15, 2014 the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) approved emergency regulations for mandatory water conservation.  At that 
time Desert Water Agency’s (DWA) Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 1101 
which enacted Stage 2 of DWA’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan (DWA Ordinance 
No. 45 (attached).  On March 17, 2015, the SWRCB revisited the regulations and 
approved additional measures.  On April 1st, the Governor directed the SWRCB to 
implement mandatory water reductions in cities and towns across California to reduce 
water usage by 25 percent on a sliding scale; DWA was mandated to reduce water use 
by 36%.  
 
Resolution 1108, adopted by the DWA Board on April 21, 2015 meets or exceeds the 
requirements of the Governor’s April 1st Executive Order.  The Agency is therefore in 
compliance with all State Directives. 
 
Resolution 1108 was created to meet the State requirements and therefore incorporates 
elements of Stages 2, 3 and 4 of Ordinance No. 45.  Ordinance No. 63 attempts to 
reorganize the requirements in each stage in an effort to create a more logical 
incremental change.  Therefore, while DWA is currently in Stage 2 of Ordinance No. 45, 
the Agency would be in Stage 4 of Ordinance No. 63 if adopted. 
 
DWA’s Ordinance No. 45 was passed in the 1980’s.  It includes surcharges as penalties 
which are no longer legal under the California Constitution.  Additionally, it includes 
outdated information and guidelines. 
 
DWA staff and legal team have worked jointly to draft Ordinance No. 63 (attached).  The 
Public Information/Conservation subcommittee of the Board of Directors met on May 22, 
2015 and reviewed/revised the draft ordinance.  The ordinance before you today 
reflects those changes. 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The public hearing notice was published in The Public Record newspaper on May 26, 
2015 and posted on the Agency’s website. As of June 12, there was one written 
comment received from the public (attached).   
 
Staff requests that the Board open a public hearing to consider adopting Ordinance No. 
63 establishing a water conservation plan and restricting the use of water during 
threatened or existing water shortage conditions.  Following the Public Hearing, staff 
requests the Board adopt Ordinance No. 63 establishing a water conservation plan and 
restricting the use of water during threatened or existing water shortage conditions.  

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 63 

ORDINANCE OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING A WATER CONSERVATION 
PLAN AND RESTRICTING THE USE OF 
WATER DURING THREATENED OR 
EXISTING WATER SHORTAGE CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, Desert Water Agency (hereinafter "Agency") is a public agency organized 
under the Desert Water Agency Law, California Water Code Appendix Section 100-1 et seq., to 
provide water service among other purposes to water users within the boundaries of the Agency; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Agency is authorized by Water Code Appendix Section 100-15 (13) to 
restrict the use of Agency water during an emergency caused by a drought, or other threatened or 
existing water shortage, and during such periods to prohibit the waste or the use of Agency water 
for any purpose other than household uses or such other restricted uses as may be determined by 
the Agency to be necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency is further authorized by Water Code Sections 375-377 to adopt 
water conservation programs; and 

WHEREAS, California is currently in the fourth year of a significant state-wide drought 
resulting in severe impacts to California's water supplies and its ability to meet all of the 
demands for water within the state; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Edmond G. Brown, Jr. declared a state-wide emergency on 
January 17, 2014, and due to continuing dry conditions, a continued state of emergency was 
declared on April 1, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 1058.5 grants the State Water Resources Control Board 
the authority to adopt emergency regulations in years when the Governor has declared an 
emergency based upon state-wide water shortage conditions; and 

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2014, the State Water Resources Control Board formally 
adopted emergency rulemaking to adopt emergency regulations for urban water suppliers; and 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2015, and May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control 
Board formally adopted additional emergency regulations for urban water suppliers due to 
continuing water shortage conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the three sets of emergency regulations adopted by the State Water 
Resources Control Board prohibit certain types of potable water use, orders all urban water 
suppliers to implement mandatory conservation measures, and orders water suppliers with 3,000 
or more service connections to provide monthly data on water production; and 

01358.00000\9773929.3 



Ord. No. 63 
Page 2 of7 

WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to adopt a water conservation program that implements 
the requirements set forth in the regulations adopted by the State Water Resources Control 
Board, and which will provide a framework that can be utilized by the Agency even after the 
current regulations adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board are no longer in effect if 
a local water shortage emergency were to arise; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency finds and determines that the adoption of the water conservation 
program set forth herein is necessary to (1) comply with the mandates imposed by the State 
Water Resources Control Board, (2) protect the health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of 
the Agency, (3) assure the maximum beneficial use of the water supplies within the Agency, and 
( 4) ensure that there will be sufficient water supplies to meet the basic needs of human 
consumption, sanitation and fire protection; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 
Agency as follows: 

Section 1: DEFINITIONS. 

1.1 "Agency" means Desert Water Agency. 

1.2 "Board" means the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency. 

1.3 "General Manager" means the General Manager of Desert Water Agency. 

1.4 "Measurable rainfall" means rainfall of 114 inch or more during any 24-hour 
period. 

1.5 "Waste" means any unreasonable or non-beneficial use of water, or any 
unreasonable method of use of water, including, but not limited to, the specific 
uses prohibited and restricted by this Ordinance as hereinafter set forth. 

1.6 "Water user" means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or 
political entity using water obtained from the water system of Desert Water 
Agency. 

1. 7 "Water" means water supplied by Desert Water Agency. 

Section 2: NOTICED PUBLIC HEARING PRIOR TO MANDATORY 
CONSERVATION, STAGES 2 THROUGH 5. 

Except when an emergency is caused by the breakage or failure of a dam, pump, pipeline 
or conduit, a noticed public hearing shall be conducted prior to the adoption of Stages 2, 3, 4 or 5 
of the Water Conservation Plan as set forth in Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 and 3.5 below. Notice of the 
time and place of hearing shall be published at least seven days prior to the date of hearing in a 
newspaper printed, published, and circulated within the area in which the water supply is 
distributed, or if there is no such newspaper, in any newspaper printed, published and circulated 
in the County of Riverside. 

01358.00000\9773929.3 



Section 3: WATER CONSERVATION PLAN STAGES. 

3.1 Stage No.1: Voluntary Conservation and Prohibited Uses. 

Ord. No. 63 
Page 3 of7 

Stage 1 shall apply whenever normal conditions are in effect. Normal conditions shall be 
in effect when the Agency is able to meet all the water demands of its customers in the 
immediate future, and when the State Water Resources Control Board or other regulatory body 
has not imposed restrictions on the use of water within the Agency. During normal conditions, 
all water users must continue to use water wisely. The waste or unreasonable use of water is 
prohibited. Unreasonable use of water shall include, but not be limited to, a use that produces 
unnecessary runoff onto adjacent property and non-irrigated areas, private and public walkways, 
roadways, and parking lots or parking structures. It shall also be an unreasonable use of water to 
irrigate landscapes within 48 hours after measurable rainfall. In addition, the following 
mandatory restrictions shall apply at all times: 

( 1) Washing driveways, parking lots, building exteriors, or other exterior hard 
surfaced areas other than windows, solar panels and tennis courts, or as necessary to protect the 
public health, shall be prohibited; provided that the use of recycled water and the use of potable 
water from a bucket, use of a pressure washer, or use of a water broom for such purposes shall be 
permitted. 

(2) Running water shall not be used for washing vehicles. A bucket may be 
used for the washing of vehicles, and hoses equipped with shutoff nozzles may be used for 
nnstng. 

3.2 Stage 2 Alert: Mandatory Conservation Measures. 

When the State Water Resources Control Board or other regulatory body has imposed 
restrictions on the use of water within the Agency that warrant the restrictions set forth herein, or 
in the event of a threatened or existing water supply shortage that could prevent the Agency from 
meeting the water demands of its water users, the Board shall conduct a public hearing to 
consider declaring a Stage 2 Alert, during which water users shall have the opportunity to present 
their protests and respective needs to the Board. Upon such declaration the following restrictions 
shall take effect immediately, in addition to those specified in Section 3.1: 

(1) Outdoor irrigation shall be permitted only before 7:00a.m. and after 7:00 
p.m. 

(2) Restaurants and other eating establishments shall not provide drinking 
water to patrons, except upon request. 

3.3 Stage 3 Warning: Mandatory Conservation Measures. 

When the State Water Resources Control Board or other regulatory body has imposed 
restrictions on the use of water within the Agency that warrant the restrictions set forth herein, or 
in the event that a water shortage condition in fact will prevent the Agency from meeting the 
demands of its water users, following a public hearing as set forth in Section 3 .2, during which 
water users shall have the opportunity to present protests and their respective needs to the Board, 

013 58.00000\9773929.3 



Ord. No. 63 
Page 4 of7 

the Board may declare that a Stage 3 Warning condition exists. Upon such declaration, the 
following water conservation measures shall apply in addition to those set forth in Sections 3.1 
and 3.2: 

(1) Outdoor irrigation shall be restricted to no more than four days per week, 
after 7:00p.m. and before 7:00a.m. 

(2) Commercial car washes shall be required to have recirculating water 
systems or shall drain used water into the sewer system where it can be recycled. 

(3) The use of water for outdoor decorative water features shall be prohibited, 
unless recirculating water systems are installed and in use. 

(4) Irrigation with potable water outside of newly constructed homes and 
buildings shall require drip irrigation or micro-irrigation systems as established by the California 
Building Standards Commission and the Department of Housing and Community Development. 

3 .4 Stage 4 Emergency: Mandatory Conservation Measures. 

When the State Water Resources Control Board or other regulatory body has imposed 
restrictions on the use of water within the Agency that warrant the restrictions set forth herein, or 
in the event that a water shortage condition requires a significant reduction in water use, 
following a public hearing as set forth in Section 3.2, during which water users shall have the 
opportunity to present protests and their respective needs to the Board, the Board may declare 
that a Stage 4 Emergency condition exists. Upon such declaration, the following water 
conservation measures shall apply in addition to those set forth in Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3: 

(1) Outdoor irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays, and 
Fridays before 7:00a.m. and after 7:00p.m. 

(2) The use of potable water to irrigate ornamental turf within the street 
medians and within dedicated right of way on each side of a dedicated street shall be prohibited. 

3.5 Stage No.5. Water Allocations. 

When the State Water Resources Control Board or other regulatory body has imposed 
restrictions on the use of water within the Agency that warrant the restrictions set forth herein, or 
in the event that a water shortage condition requires the Agency to allocate water supplies to 
water users or warrants a moratorium on new service connections, or both, following a public 
hearing as set forth in Water Code Sections 350 et seq., the Board may consider adoption of a 
resolution or ordinance that allocates water deliveries among the Agency's water users, and that 
imposes penalties for consumption in excess of the allocated amounts. The resolution or 
ordinance may also, or instead, impose a limit on new water service connections. Violation of 
the provisions of such resolution or ordinance shall be deemed a violation of this Ordinance, and 
shall be subject to the enforcement provisions set forth herein. 

01358.00000\9773929.3 



Section 4: MODIFICATION OF WATER CONSERVATION MEASURES. 

Ord. No. 63 
Page 5 of7 

The specific requirements of each mandatory conservation stage identified in this 
Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Board following a public hearing; provided 
that the Board may modify or amend such requirements at the time of adoption upon a showing 
of the need for such modification or amendment. 

Section 5: IMPLEMENTATION AND TERMINATION OF MANDATORY 
COMPLIANCE STAGES. 

The General Manager of the Agency shall monitor the supply and demand for water on a 
regular basis to determine the level of conservation required by the implementation or 
termination of the Water Conservation Plan stages set forth in this Ordinance, and shall notify 
the Board of the necessity for the implementation or termination of each stage. Each declaration 
of the Board implementing or terminating a water conservation stage shall be published at least 
once in a newspaper of general circulation, and shall remain in effect until the Board otherwise 
declares, as provided herein. 

Section 6: EXCEPTIONS. 

The General Manager of the Agency is hereby authorized to allow exceptions from the 
application of any provision of this Ordinance, due to exceptional circumstances, if the General 
Manager determines that the application of a provision would either: (a) cause an unnecessary 
and undue hardship to the water user or to the public; or (b) jeopardize the health, sanitation, fire 
protection or safety of the water user or of the public. Such exceptions may be granted only 
upon application therefor. Upon granting any such exception, the General Manager may impose 
any .conditions the General Manager determines to be appropriate in the circumstance. 

Section 7: CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS FOR VIOLATION. 

The Board hereby determines that, pursuant to Water Code Section 3 77, it shall be a 
misdemeanor for any water user to use or apply water contrary to or in violation of any 
mandatory restriction or requirement established by this Ordinance and, upon conviction thereof, 
that water user shall be punished by imprisonment in the County jail for not more than 30 days or 
by a fine of not more than $1,000, or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

Section 8: CIVIL PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT. 

In addition to criminal penalties, violators of the mandatory provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be subject to civil penalties and enforcement action by the Agency staff, as follows: 

8.1 First Violation. 

For a first violation, the Agency staff shall issue a written notice of violation to the water 
user who is violating the provisions of this Ordinance. Upon receipt of the notice of violation, 
the water user shall have three days to correct the violation, without penalty, or within three days 
may request, in writing, a hearing by the General Manager or the General Manager's designee to 
present evidence that a violation did not occur, pursuant to the procedures hereinafter set forth. 

01358.00000\9773929.3 



Ord. No. 63 
Page 6 of7 

If it is determined that the water user has committed a violation which has not been corrected 
within the time provided herein, the civil penalty shall be $50 for a first violation at a single 
family residence and $100 for a first violation at a multi-family residential, commercial or 
institutional establishment. 

8.2 Second Violation. 

For a second violation of this Ordinance within any 12-month period, the Agency staff 
shall provide the water user with written notice thereof, and the water user shall have the same 
period of time set forth in Section 8.1 to correct the violation or to request a hearing. For a 
second violation within any 12-month period that is not corrected within the time provided 
herein, the civil penalty shall be $100 at a single family residence and $200 at a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment. 

8.3 Third Violation. 

For a third violation of this Ordinance and for each subsequent violation within any 12-
month period, the water user shall not be provided an opportunity to avoid the civil penalty by 
correcting the violation, but shall have the same opportunity set forth in Section 8.1 to request a 
hearing. For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty 
shall be $250 at a single family residence and $500 at a multi-family residential, commercial or 
institutional establishment. 

8.4 Collection of Civil Penalties. 

Civil penalties may be billed to the violating water user by separate invoice, or may be 
added to the water user's invoice for water service as a separately itemized charge as determined 
by Agency staff. Civil penalties that are not paid may become a lien on the affected property in a 
manner provided by law to secure payment for water service. In addition, the Agency staff shall 
be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of this Ordinance and for failure to 
pay a civil penalty within the period of time provided by the Agency staff for payment of 
invoices for water service. In the event that service is terminated, such service shall remain 
terminated for a period of at least 48 hours, unless such period is extended by action of the Board 
of Directors. A charge shall be imposed for reconnection and restoration of service in the 
amount normally charged by the Agency for restoration of service. Such restoration of service 
shall not be made until the General Manager has determined that the water user has provided 
adequate assurances that future violations of this Ordinance by such water user will not occur. 

8.5 Notice. 

Written notice may be given to the water user personally or by first class mail via the 
United States Postal Service addressed to the location where the violation is occurring or to the 
address provided for the mailing of invoices for water service. The Agency staff may also 
provide written notice by affixing a copy in a conspicuous place on the property where the 
violation is occurring or by delivering a copy to a person there residing, if such person can be 
found, and also by sending a copy through the United States mail. Said notice shall contain, in 
addition to the facts of the violation, a statement of the possible penalties for the violation and a 
statement informing the water user of his or her right to a hearing. 

01358.00000\9773929.3 




	Agenda 10 20 15 Board Agenda
	Item 2 10 06 15 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 GM Report
	OCTOBER 20, 2015

	Item 4 10 13 15 Exec Cmttee Minutes
	Item 5 10 20 15 Sept. Treasurer Rpt
	Item 8B 10 20 15 September 2015 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report
	Item 8C 10 20 15 Review Ordinance 63 staff report

	ATTACHMENTS:    ATTACHMENT


